
C  I  T  Y   O  F 

MILACA Minneso
255 First Street East, Milaca, MN 56353 (320)983-3141 | (320)983-3142 fax

CITY OF MILACA 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

JULY 8, 2024 
6:00 P.M. 

255 1ST ST E, CITY HALL COUNCIL ROOM 

1. Open Regular Planning Commission Meeting

2. Call to Order Time/Roll Call

___ Brett Freeze   __Arla Johnson   ___Greg Kuperus   ___Jake Lepper    ___Joel Millam

___Mitch Siemers    ___Brad Tolzman

MB_____2nd_____AIF____O____ 3. Approve minutes from June 3, 2024 

4. Open Public Hearings: Time_____________

a. Ordinance #529 Regulating Cannabis Businesses and 
Cultivation

 Close Public Hearings: Time_____________ 

5. Open Public Hearings: Time_____________

a. Ordinance #156.057 Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses (Tarp-Like Structures)

 Close Public Hearings: Time_____________ 

1



6. New Business
a. Ordinance # Ordinance #529 Regulating Cannabis Businesses and Cultivation

MB_____2nd_____AIF____O____ 
b. Ordinance #156.057 Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses

(Tarp-Like Structures) MB_____2nd_____AIF____O____ 

7. Miscellaneous
Next meeting possibly create a Solar Panel Ordinance and discuss RV Regulations

8. Adjourn

2



CITY OF MILACA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
June 3, 2024 

6:00 P.M. 
1. OPEN PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING: Brad Tolzman –Chairman 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. MEMBERS PRESENT: Roll Call: 
a. Joel Millam, Brett Freese, Arla Johnson, Brad Tolzman, Greg Kuperus 
b. Others Present: City Manager Tammy Pfaff, Assistant City Clerk Deloris Katke, 
Council Liaison Norris Johnson. Residents:  Mitch Siemers, Jake Lepper, Mary Anderson, Mike 
Pap, Denise Miller 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM November 13, 2023: 
Chairman Tolzman called for a motion to approve the minutes from November 13, 2023. 
Motion to approve minutes from November 13, 2023, made by Brett Freese, seconded by Joel 
Millam. No further discussion. All in favor.  
Motion passes. 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS: Opened at 6:01 p.m. 
 

a. Preliminary Plat for Worth Custom Homes: Jarod Worth, representing Worth Custom 
Homes, requesting approval of the preliminary plat of Wilkin Estates, located in northeast 
Milaca. Several questions were raised by residents related to setbacks, storm water  
drainage, access, and timeframes.   PC Member Kuperus asked Mr. Worth about 
timeframes for completion of the various phases of the project, as well as the ability to 
pull additional permits while this process was moving along.  PC Member Freese asked 
Mr. Worth if his company has been following the appropriate steps during the course of 
this project. PC Member Millam asked City Manager Pfaff if the city had a 
recommendation regarding approval of this request.  

 
5. Public Hearings closed at 6:09 p.m. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
a. Preliminary Plat for Worth Custom Homes: PC Member Millam made a motion to 
recommend approval of the preliminary plat for Worth Custom Homes as presented. PC 
Member A. Johnson seconded the motion. No further discussion. All in favor. 
Motion passes. 
 
b. Interview Planning Commission Candidate: The three candidates for the two open Planning 
Commission seats were:  Mitchell Siemers, Jake Lepper, and Harold “Pete” Pedersen. All three 
candidates are residents of Milaca.  The candidates were asked the following questions with 
regard to their desire to be part of the city’s zoning and planning commission:  

1. What are your goals/accomplishments for being on the Planning Commission? 
2. How would you accomplish getting a resident or commercial business to 
comply to zoning ordinances?  

3



3. What would you change in the zoning ordinance?  
4. How would you improve the City of Milaca?  
5. How would you handle conflict or a difference of opinion with a Planning 
Commission member’s views if you did not agree with them? 

Candidates Siemers and Lepper were in attendance and answered the questions in person, 
candidate Pedersen submitted his responses, and they were shared with the group.   
Following the interviews each PC Member was given a ballot and asked to select no more then 
two choices for the open seats.  The results were as follows: 
Candidate Siemers - five votes 
Candidate Lepper- five votes  
Candidate Pedersen- zero votes 
 
PC Member Johnson motioned to approve the results of the vote. PC Member Kuperus seconded 
the motion. No further discussion. All in favor.  
Motion passes. 
 
c. Appoint a secretary for the Planning Commission:  PC Member Freese volunteered to fill the 
secretary vacancy on the Planning Commission.  PC Member Johnson made a motion to 
approve PC Member Freese as Planning Commission secretary. PC Member Millam seconded the 
motion. No further discussion. All in favor. 
Motion passes. 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS: 
City Manager Pfaff stated that a city ordinance related to solar panel projects, tarp like structures, 
and cannabis cultivation will likely be topics of upcoming Planning Commission meetings.   
PC Member Millam asked how the meter replacement was coming and City Manager 
Pfaff stated that they are about 95% complete. There are a few residents that refuse to 
comply and we may need to get our city attorney involved. 
8. ADJOURN: 
PC Chairman Tolzman called for a motion to adjourn. PC Member Millam made the 
motion to adjourn. PC Member Johnson seconded the motion. No further discussion. All 
In favor.  
Motion passes. 
Meeting adjourned at 6:35 p.m. 

4



ORDINANCE NO. 529 
AN ORDINANCE ADDING TITLE XI (BUSINESS REGULATIONS) CHAPTER 122 

ADULT-USE CANNABIS AND CANNABIS BUSINESS AND CULTIVATION 
REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF MILACA CODE OF ORDINANCES 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILACA, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 
__122.01  PURPOSE AND INTENT 
__122.02  DEFINITIONS 
    122.03  AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION 
    122.04  REGISTRATION OF CANNABIS BUSINESSES 
    122.05  APPLICATION APPROVAL 
    122.06  ANNUAL COMPLIANCE CHECKS 
    122.07  LOCATION CHANGE 
    122.08  REGISTRATION RENEWAL 
    122.09  SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION 
    122.10  CIVIL PENALTIES 
    122.11  LIMITING REGISTRATIONS 
    122.12  REQUIREMENTS FOR CANNABIS BUSINESSES 
    122.13  ZONING AND LAND USE 
    122.14  HOURS OF OPERATION 
    122.15  ADVERTISING 
    122.16  TEMPORARY CANNABIS EVENTS 
    122.17  SALE OF LOW-POTENCY HEMP EDIBLES 
    122.18  SALES OF ADULT-USE CANNABIS 
    122.19  TAXES 
    122.20  INDIVIDUALS 
    122.21  LOCAL GOVERNMENT AS A CANNABIS RETAILER 
    122.22  USE IN PUBLIC PLACES 

§122.01 PURPOSE AND INTENT.

The use, possession and cultivation of cannabis and cannabis related products has 
become legal in the State of Minnesota for adults over the age of twenty-one (21), and the city 
believes reasonable controls and regulations are required to ensure use, possession, cultivation 
and consumption of such products is necessary to ensure public health, safety, comfort, 
convenience and general welfare of the residence of the City of Milaca.  This Ordinance shall be 
intended to regulate the sale, possession, use and cultivation of cannabis and cannabis related 
products and cannabis related devices for the purpose of enforcing and furthering existing laws, 
to protect minors against the serious effects associated with the use of cannabis and cannabis 
related devices, and to further the official public policy of the State of Minnesota in regard to  

5



preventing young people from starting to use cannabis and cannabis related products.  This 
Ordinance shall be construed to comply with the requirements of Minnesota Statute §342. 
The city finds and concludes that the proposed provisions are appropriate and lawful land use 
regulations for City of Milaca, that the proposed amendments will promote the community’s 
interest in reasonable stability in zoning for now and in the future, and that the proposed 
provisions are in the public interest and for the public good. 

§122.02  DEFINITIONS.

Unless otherwise noted in this section, words and phrases contained in Minn. Stat. 
§342.01 and the rules promulgated pursuant to any of these acts, shall have the same meanings in
this ordinance.

CANNABIS CULTIVATION.  A cannabis business licensed to grow cannabis plants  

within the approved amount of space from seed or immature plant to mature plant, harvest 
cannabis flower from mature plant, package and label immature plants and seedlings and 
cannabis flower for sale to other cannabis businesses, transport cannabis flower to a cannabis 
manufacturer located on the same premises, and perform other actions approved by the office. 

CANNABIS FLOWER.  "Cannabis flower" means the harvested flower, bud, leaves,  
and stems of a cannabis plant. Cannabis flower includes adult-use cannabis flower and medical 
cannabis flower. Cannabis flower does not include cannabis seed, hemp plant parts, or hemp-
derived consumer products. 

CANNABIS PRODUCTS.  "Cannabis product" means any of the following: 

(1) cannabis concentrate;

(2) a product infused with cannabinoids, including but not limited to
tetrahydrocannabinol, extracted or derived from cannabis plants or cannabis flower; or 

(3) any other product that contains cannabis concentrate.

Cannabis product includes adult-use cannabis products, including but not limited to 
edible cannabis products and medical cannabinoid products. Cannabis product does not include 
cannabis flower, artificially derived cannabinoid, lower-potency hemp edibles, hemp-derived 
consumer products, or hemp-derived topical products. 

CANNABIS RETAIL BUSINESSES.  A retail location and the retail location(s) of a 
mezzobusinesses with a retail operations endorsement, microbusinesses with a retail operations 
endorsement, medical combination businesses operating a retail location, (and/excluding) lower-
potency hemp edible retailers. 

CANNABIS RETAILER.  Any person, partnership, firm, corporation, or association, 

6



foreign or domestic, selling cannabis product to a consumer and not for the purpose of resale in 
any form. 

 
CULTIVATION.  Any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, 

curing, grading or trimming of cannabis plants, cannabis flower, hemp plants or hemp plant 
parts. 

 
CULTIVATOR.  Cultivators may cultivate cannabis and package such cannabis for sale 

to another licensed cannabis business. 
 
DAYCARE.  A location licensed with the Minnesota Department of Human Services to 

provide the care of a child in a residence outside the child’s own home for gain or otherwise, on 
a regular basis, for any part of a 24-hour day. 

 
DELIVERY SERVICE.  Delivery services may purchase cannabis, cannabis products, 

and hemp products from retailers or cannabis business with retail endorsements for transport and 
delivery to customers.   

 
EVENT ORGANIZER.  Event organizers may organize a temporary cannabis event 

lasting no more than four (4) days. 
 
LOWER-POTENCY HEMP EDIBLE.  As defined under Minn. Stat. §342.01 Subd. 50. 
 
LOWER-POTENCY HEMP EDIBLE MANUFACTURER.  Lower-potency hemp 

edible manufacturers may manufacture and package lower-potency hemp edibles for consumer 
sale, and sell hemp concentrate and lower-potency hemp edibles to other cannabis and hemp 
businesses. 

 
LOWER-POTENCY HEMP EDIBLE RETAILER.  Lower-potency hemp edible 

retailers may sell lower-potency hemp edibles to customers.   
 
MANUFACTURER.  Manufacturers may manufacture cannabis products and hemp 

products, and package such products for sale to a licensed cannabis retailer. 
 
MEDICAL CANNABIS COMBINATION BUSINESS.  Medical cannabis combination 

businesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture cannabis and hemp products, and package 
such products for sale to customers, patients, or another licensed cannabis business.  Medical 
cannabis combination businesses may operate up to one retail location in each congressional 
district.  Medical cannabis combination businesses may cultivate at more than one location 
within other limitations on cultivation. 

 
MEZZOBUSINESS.  Mezzobusinesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture 

cannabis products and hemp products, and package such products for sale to customers or 
another licensed cannabis business.  Mezzobusiness may also operate up to three retail locations. 

 
MICROBUSINESS.  Microbusinesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture cannabis 

products and hemp products and package such products for sale to customers or another licensed 

delete if 
we don’t 
allow 
events 

7



cannabis business.  Microbusiness may also operate a single retail location. 
 
OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT.  Minnesota Office of Cannabis 

Management, referred to as “OCM” in this ordinance is the state regulatory office created to 
oversee the implementation and regulation of the adult-use cannabis market, the medical 
cannabis market and the consumer hemp industry.  OCM governs the application and licensing 
process for cannabis and hemp businesses, specific requirements for each type of license and 
their respective business activities and conducts enforcement and inspection activities across the 
Minnesota cannabis and hemp industries. 

 
PLACE OF PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION.  A business, accommodation, refreshment, 

entertainment, recreation or transportation facility of any kind, whether licensed or not, whose 
goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages or accommodations are extended, offered, sold, 
or otherwise made available to the public. 

 
PRELIMINARY LICENSE APPROVAL.  OCM pre-approval for a cannabis business 

license for applicants who qualify under Minn. Stat. §342.17. 
 

PUBLIC PLACE.  Property that is generally open to or accessible by the public, except 
on those premises licensed by the State of Minnesota to permit on-site consumption. 
 

PUBLIC PROPERTY.  Property, real and personal, that is owned, managed, or 
controlled by the City, including, but not limited to: City buildings and all the land thereon, 
parking lots, parks, airport property, golf courses, pathways and trails, and city rights-of-way 
consisting of both the traveled portion and the abutting boulevard, sidewalks and trails, and any 
City personal property, such as motor vehicles, city equipment, and the like.  Including, but not 
limited to restaurants, bars, any other food or liquor establishment, hospitals, nursing homes, 
auditoriums, arenas, gyms, meeting rooms, common areas of rental apartment buildings, and 
other places of public accommodation. 
 
 RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY.  As defined under Minn. Stat. §245.462 
Subd. 23. 
 
 RETAIL REGISTRATION.  An approved registration issued by the city to a state-
licensed cannabis retail business. 
 
 RETAILER.  Retailers may sell immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis, 
cannabis products, hemp products, and other products authorized by law to customers and 
patients.  May operate up to five (5) retail locations under a single license. 
 
 SCHOOL.  A public school as defined under Minn. Stat. §120A.05 or a nonpublic 
school that must meet the reporting requirements under Minn. Stat. §120A.24. 
 
 STATE LICENSE.  An approved license issued by the State of Minnesota’s Office of 
Cannabis Management to a cannabis retail business. 
 
 TESTING FACILITY.  Testing facilities may obtain and test immature cannabis plants 
and seedlings, cannabis, cannabis products, and hemp products from licensed cannabis 

8



businesses. 
 
 TRANSPORTER.  Transporters may transport immature cannabis plants and seedlings, 
cannabis, cannabis products, and hemp products to licensed cannabis businesses. 
 
 WHOLESALER.  Wholesalers may purchase and/or sell immature cannabis plants and 
seedlings, cannabis, cannabis products, and hemp products from another licensed cannabis 
business.  Wholesalers may also import hemp-derived consumer products and lower-potency 
hemp edibles.   
 
 
 
§122.03  AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION. 
 
 (A)  City of Milaca has the authority to adopt this ordinance pursuant to: 
 
  (1)  Minn. Stat. §342.13(c) regarding the authority of a local unit of government 
to adopt reasonable restrictions of the time, place and manner of the operation of a cannabis 
business provided that such restrictions do not prohibit the establishment or operation of 
cannabis businesses. 
 
  (2)  Minn. Stat. §342.22 regarding the local registration and enforcement 
requirements of state-licensed cannabis retail businesses and lower-potency hemp edible retail 
businesses. 
 
  (3)  Minn. Stat. 152.0263, Subd. 5 regarding the use of cannabis in public places. 
 
  (4)  Minn. Stat. 462.357 regarding the authority of a local authority to adopt 
zoning ordinances. 
 
 (B)  This Ordinance shall be applicable to the legal boundaries of City of Milaca.  City of  
Milaca has delegated cannabis retail registration authority to Mille Lacs County.  However, City 
of Milaca may adopt ordinances if Mille Lacs County has not adopted conflicting provisions. 
 
 (C)  If any section, clause, provision or portion of this ordinance is adjudged 
unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance 
shall not be affected thereby. 
 
 (D)  The Milaca Police Department is responsible for the administration and enforcement 
of this ordinance.  Any violation of the provisions of this ordinance or failure to comply with any 
of its requirements constitutes a misdemeanor and is punishable as defined by law.  Violations of 
this ordinance can occur regardless of whether or not a permit is required for a regulated activity 
listed in this ordinance. 
 
 Local Governments: 
 
 (A)  May not prohibit the possession, transportation, or use of cannabis, or the 
establishment or operation of a cannabis business licensed under state law. 

9



 
 (B)  May adopt reasonable restrictions on the time, place, and manner of cannabis 
business operations. 
 
 (C)  May adopt interim ordinances to protect public safety and welfare, as any studies 
and/or further considerations on local cannabis activities are being conducted, until January 1, 
2025.  A public hearing must be held prior to adoption of an interim ordinance. 
 
 (D)  Must be considered in a local ordinance. 
 
 
 
§122.04  REGISTRATION OF CANNABIS BUSINESSES. 
 
 (A)  No individual or entity may operate a state-licensed cannabis retail business within 
the city without first registering with the city.  Any state-licensed cannabis retail business that  
sells to a customer or patient without valid retail registration shall incur a civil penalty of up to 
$2,000 for each violation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the state shall not issue a 
license to any cannabis business to operate in Indian country, as defined in United States Code, 
title 18, section 1151, of a Minnesota Tribal government without the consent of the Tribal 
government.    Tribal nations hold the authority to license tribal cannabis businesses on tribal 
lands – this process is separate than OCM’s licensing process and authority.  Subject to 
compacting, Tribal nations may operate cannabis businesses off tribal lands.  Minn. Stat. 
§342.13. 
 
 (B)  Prior to issuance of a cannabis retail business registration, the city shall/shall not 
conduct a preliminary compliance check to ensure compliance with local ordinances.  Pursuant 
to Minn. Stat. §342, within 30 days of receiving a copy of a state license application from OCM, 
city shall certify on a form provided by OCM whether a proposed cannabis retail business 
complies with local zoning ordinances and, if applicable, whether the proposed business 
complies with state fire code and building code.  The business must also be current on all 
property taxes and assessments for the proposed retail location. 
 
 (C)  The city shall not charge an application fee.  A registration fee, as established in the 
city’s fee schedule, shall be charged to applicants depending on the type of retail business license 
applied for.  An initial retail registration fee shall not exceed $500 or half the amount of an initial 
state license fee under Minn. Stat. §342.11, whichever is less.  The initial registration fee shall 
include the initial retail registration fee and the first annual renewal fee.  Any renewal retail 
registration fee imposed by the city shall be charged at the time of the second renewal and each 
subsequent renewal thereafter.  A renewal retail registration fee shall not exceed $1,000 or half 
the amount of the renewal state license fee under Minn. Stat. §342.11, whichever is less.  A 
medical combination business operating an adult-use retail location may only be charged a single 
registration fee, not to exceed the lesser of a single retail registration fee, defined under this 
section, of the adult-use retail business. 
 

SHOULD THIS 
BE MN DEPT 
OF HEALTH? 
OR STATE? 

10



 (D)  The city shall issue a retail registration to a state-licensed cannabis retail business 
that adheres to the requirements of Minn. Stat. §342.22.  An applicant for a retail registration  
shall fill out an application form, as provided by the city.  Said form shall include, but is not 
limited to: 
 
  (1)  Full name of the property owner and applicant; 
 
  (2)  Address, email address, and telephone numbers of the applicant; 
 
  (3)  The address and parcel ID for the property which the retail registration is 
sought; 
 
  (4)  Certification that the applicant complies with the requirements of local 
ordinances established pursuant to Minn. Stat. §342.13 
 
  (5)  The applicant shall include with the form: 
 
         a.  Registration fee as required by city 
 
         b.  a copy of a valid state license or written notice of the OCM 
   license approval 
 
 
 
§122.05  APPLICATION APPROVAL. 
 

Once an application is considered complete, the city manager or designee shall inform the 
applicant as such, process the application fees and forward the application to the city council for 
approval or denial.  The application fee shall be non-refundable once processed.  A state-licensed 
cannabis retail business application shall not be approved if the cannabis retail business would 
exceed the maximum number of registered cannabis retail businesses permitted under Section 
____   A state-licensed cannabis retail business application shall not be approved or renewed if 
the applicant is unable to meet the requirements of this ordinance.  A state-licensed cannabis 
retail business application that meets the requirements of this ordinance shall be approved.  
Application may be refused based on: 

 
 (A)  Applicant has been convicted of a felony or willful violation of a federal or 

state law or local ordinance related to the manufacture, sale, distribution, or possession for sale 
of distribution of an alcoholic beverage. 

 
 
§122.06  ANNUAL COMPLIANCE CHECKS. 
 
 The city shall complete at minimum one compliance check per calendar year of every 
cannabis business to assess if the business meets age verification requirements, as required under 
Minn. Stat. §342.22 Subd. 4(b) and Minn Stat. §342.24 and this ordinance.  The city shall  

11



 
conduct at minimum one unannounced age verification compliance check at least once per 
calendar year.  Age verification compliance checks shall involve persons at least 17 years of age 
but under the age of 21 who, with the prior written consent of a parent or guardian if the person 
is under the age of 18, attempt to purchase adult-use cannabis flower, adult-use cannabis 
products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products under the direct 
supervision of a law enforcement officer or an employee of the local unit of government.  Any 
failures under this section must be reported to the Office of Cannabis Management. 
 
 
§122.07  LOCATION CHANGE. 
 
 A state-licensed cannabis retail business shall be required to submit a new application for 
registration if it seeks to move to a new location still within the legal boundaries of the city.  If a 
state-licensed cannabis retail business seeks to move to a new location still within the legal 
boundaries of the city, it shall notify the city of the proposed location change and submit 
necessary information to meet all the criteria in this paragraph. 
 
 
§122.08  REGISTRATION RENEWAL. 
 
 The city shall renew an annual registration of a state-licensed cannabis retail business at 
the same time OCM renews the cannabis retail business’ license.  A state-licensed cannabis retail 
business shall apply to renew registration on a form established by the city.  A cannabis retail 
registration issued under this ordinance shall not be transferred.  The city may charge a renewal 
fee for the registration starting at the second renewal, as established in the city’s fee schedule.  
The application for renewal of a retail registration shall include, but it not limited to items in 
§122.04(D). 
 
 
§122.09  SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION. 
 
 The city may suspend a cannabis retail business’s registration if it violates the ordinance 
of the city or poses an immediate threat to the health or safety of the public.  The city shall 
immediately notify the cannabis retail business in writing the grounds for the suspension.  The 
city shall also immediately notify the OCM in writing the grounds for the suspension.  OCM will 
provide the city and cannabis business retailer a response to the complaint within seven (7) 
calendar days and perform any necessary inspections within thirty (30) calendar days.  The 
suspension of a cannabis retail business registration may be for up to thirty (30) calendar days, 
unless OCM suspends the license for a longer period.  The business may not make sales to 
customers if their registration is suspended.  The city may reinstate a registration if it determines 
that the violations have been resolved, or, the city may wait for a determination from the OCM 
before reinstating a registration.  The city shall reinstate a registration if OCM determines that 
the violation(s) have been resolved.   
 
 

CITY NEEDS TO 
CREATE 
RENEWAL FORM 

SO, CAN CITY 
REINSTATE?  
CONTRADICTORY 

12



§122.10  CIVIL PENALTIES.   
 
 Subject to Minn. Stat. §342.22, Subd. 5(e), the city may impose a civil penalty, as 
specified in the city’s fee schedule for registration violations, not to exceed $2,000. 
 
 
§122.11  LIMITING REGISTRATIONS. 
 
 The county shall limit the number of cannabis retail businesses to no fewer than one 
registration for every 12,500 residents with the county.  If Mille Lacs County has one active 
cannabis retail business registration for every 12,500 residents, the city shall not be required to 
register additional state-licensed cannabis retail businesses.  The city shall limit the number of 
cannabis retail businesses to ______. 
 
 
§122.12  REQUIREMENTS FOR CANNABIS BUSINESSES. 
 
 The city shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within 1,000 feet of a school 
or within 500 feet of a daycare, residential treatment facility, churches, libraries, recreational 
centers, halfway houses or of an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, 
including a playground or athletic field.  The city shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis retail 
business within _____ feet of another cannabis retail business.  Pursuant to Minn. Stat. §462.367, 
Subd. 14, nothing in this ordinance shall prohibit an active cannabis business or a cannabis 
business seeking registration from continuing operation at the same site if a school, daycare, 
residential treatment facility or attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors 
moves within the minimum buffer zone. 
 
 
§122.13  ZONING AND LAND USE. 
 
 Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cultivation are permitted as a (type of use) 
in the following zoning districts: 
 
   (List districts) 
 
 Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cannabis manufacturer are permitted as a 
(type of use) in the following zoning districts: 
 
   (Lists districts but typically Industrial) 
 

Businesses licensed or endorsed for low-potency hemp edible manufacturers permitted 
as a (type of use) in the following zoning districts: 

 
  (List districts but typically Industrial) 
 

current ord. 
#120.05(A)(
3) states 
500 ft from 
public 

 

conditional use 
or interim 

IS COUNTY REGULATING?    
IF COUNTY REGULATES, 
THEY COLLECT THE TAXES.  
DELETE? 

how many acres 
needed for 
growing/cultivation? 

how many acres 
needed for 
growing/cultivation? 

how many acres 
needed for 
growing/cultivation? 

INDUSTRIAL 
HEMP IS AN 
AGRICULTURAL 
PRODUCT AND 
SHOULD BE 
ZONED AS SUCH 

LOCAL GOVTS 
ARE NOT 
REQUIRED TO 
LIMIT A 
NUMBER OF 
CANNABIS 
RETAILERS 

DO WE WANT SO 
MANY FEET 
FROM 
RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT? 

13



Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for wholesale are permitted as a (type of use) 
in the following zoning districts: 

 
  (List districts) 
 
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cannabis retail are permitted as a (type of 

use) in the following zoning districts: 
 
  (List districts but typically Commercial/Retail zones) 
 
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for transportation are permitted as a (type of 

use) in the following zoning districts: 
 
  (List districts) 
 
 
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for delivery are permitted as a (type of use) in 

the following zoning districts: 
 
  (List districts) 
 

 
§122.14  HOURS OF OPERATION. 
 
 Cannabis businesses are limited to retail sale of cannabis, cannabis flower, cannabis 
products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products between the hours of 
10 a.m. and 9 p.m..  However, state statutes prohibit the sale of cannabis between 2 a.m. and 8 
a.m., Monday through Saturday, and between 2 a.m. and 10 a.m. on Sundays.  Minn. Stat. 
§342.13. 
 
 
§122.15  ADVERTISING. 
 
 (A)  May not include or appeal to those under 21 years old. 
  
 (B)  Must include property warning statements. 
 
 (C)  May not include misleading claims or false statements. 
 
 (D)  Cannabis businesses are permitted to erect up to two fixed signs on the exterior of 
the building or property of the business, unless otherwise limited by city’s sign ordinances.  
Billboards are not allowed. 
 
 
 
 

14



 
 
 
§122.16  TEMPORARY CANNABIS EVENTS. 
 
 Any individual or business seeking to obtain a cannabis event license must provide OCM 
information about the time, location, layout, number of business participants, and hours of 
operation.  A cannabis event organizer must receive local approval, including obtaining any 
necessary permits or licenses issued by the city and/or county before holding a cannabis event.  
Event cannot last any longer than four (4) days.  A license or permit is required to be issued and 
approved by the city prior to holding a Temporary Cannabis Event.  A registration fee, as 
established in the city’s fee schedule, shall be charged to applicants for a Temporary Cannabis 
Event.  The city shall require an application for Temporary Cannabis Events.  An applicant for a 
retail registration shall fill out an application form, as provided by the city.  Said form shall 
include, but is not limited to: 
 
  (1)  Full name of the property owner and applicant; 
 
  (2)  Address, email address, and telephone numbers of the applicant; 
 
  (3)  The address and parcel ID where event is to be held 
 
  (4)  The applicant shall include with the form: 
 
         a.  application fee as required  
 
         b.  a copy of the OCM cannabis event license application, submitted pursuant 
to Minn. Stat. §342.39 Subd. 2. 
  
 The application shall be submitted to the city, or other designee, for review.  If the 
designee determines that a submitted application is incomplete, they shall return the application 
to the applicant with the notice of deficiencies.  Once an application is considered complete, the 
designee shall inform the applicant as such, process the application fees and forward the 
application to the city council for approval or denial.  The application fee shall be non-refundable 
once processed.  The application for a license for a Temporary Cannabis Event shall meet the 
following standards: 
 
   (insert standards like no consumption of alcohol, hours, etc.) 
 
 A request for a Temporary Cannabis Event that meets the requirements of this section 
shall be approved.  A request for a Temporary Cannabis Event that does not meet the 
requirements of this section shall be denied.  The city shall notify the applicant of the standards 
not met and basis for denial.  Temporary Cannabis Events shall only be held at 
___________________ (insert location(s)) 
 
 

need to set a 
registration 
fee for 
temporary 
event and 
create 
application 

DO WE EVEN 
WANT 
EVENTS? 

15



 
§122.17  SALE OF LOW-POTENCY HEMP EDIBLES. 
 
 The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted, subject to the conditions within this 
ordinance.  Low-Potency Edibles businesses are permitted as a (type of use) in the following 
zoning districts: 
 
    (List districts) 
 
 The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted: 
 

(A) In a Municipal Liquor Store.   
 
(B)  In places that admit persons 21 years of age or older.   
 
(C)  In places that meet requirements of this ordinance. 
 
(D)  Shall be sold behind a counter and stored in a locked case. 

 
 
 
§122.18  SALES OF ADULT-USE CANNABIS. 
 
 The flow of all products through the supply chain must be tracked by the state-authorized 
tracking system.  All  products sold to consumers and patients must be tested for contaminants.  
Home delivery is allowed by licensed businesses. 
 
 
 
§122.19  TAXES. 
 
 Retail sales of taxable cannabis products are subject to the state and local sales and use 
tax and a ten (10)% gross receipts tax.  Cannabis gross receipts tax proceeds are allocated as 
follows: 
    20% to the local government cannabis aid account 
     
    80% to the state general fund 
 
 Local taxes imposed solely on sale of cannabis products are prohibited.  Cannabis 
retailers will be subject to the same real property tax classification as all other retail businesses.  
Real property used for raising, cultivating, processing, or storing cannabis plants, cannabis 
flower, or cannabis products for sale will be classified as commercial and industrial property.   
   
 
 
§122.20  INDIVIDUALS.    

16



 
 (A)  Individuals may possess 2 ounces of flower in public. 
 
 (B)  Individuals may possess 2 pounds in private residence. 
 
 (C)  8 grams of concentrate. 
 
 (D)  800 mg THC edibles (including lower-potency hemp). 
 
 (E)  Consumption is only allowed on private property or at licensed businesses with on-
site consumption endorsements.  Consumption is not allowed in public. 
 
 (F)  Gifting cannabis to another individual over 21 years old is allowed, subject to 
possession limits. 
 
 (G)  Home cultivation is limited to four (4) mature and four (4) immature plants (8 total) 
in a single residence.  Plants must be in an enclosed and locked space. 
 
 (H)  Home extraction using volatile substances (e.g. butane, ethanol) is not allowed. 
 
 (I)  Unlicensed sales are not allowed. 
 
 
 
§122.21  LOCAL GOVERNMENT AS A CANNABIS RETAILER. 
 
 City of Milaca may establish, own and operate one municipal cannabis retail business 
subject to the restrictions in this ordinance.  The municipal cannabis retail store shall not be 
included in any limitation of the number of registered cannabis retail businesses under this 
ordinance.  The city shall be subject to all same rental license requirements and procedures 
applicable to all other applicants.   
 
 
 
§122.22  USE IN PUBLIC PLACES. 
 
 No person shall use cannabis flower, cannabis products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or 
hemp-derived consumer products in a public place or a place of public accommodation unless 
the premises is an establishment or an event licensed to permit on-site consumption of adult-use. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted this_____ day of _____________, 2024. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Mayor Dave Dillon 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Manager Tammy Pfaff 
 
 
OTHER ITEMS TO CONSIDER:           
Odor 
Lighting 
Water Consumption 
Security – should we require security cameras?  If so, how long should video be saved? 
Ventilation & Filtration 
Solid Waste 
 

SEE 
CANNABIS 
PLANNING & 
ZONING 
HANDOUT 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



§ 156.057 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND USES.

(A) (1) No accessory building or structure other than a fence or a temporary construction office shall be permitted on

any lot prior to the time of construction of the principal building.

(2) Pursuant to authority granted by M.S. § 462.3593, Subd. 9, the city opts-out of the requirements of M.S. §

462.3593, which defines and regulates temporary family health care dwellings.

(B) Whenever a garage is so designed that it is to be entered directly from a side street or alley, the distance between the

doors and the lot line shall be 18 feet or more.

(C) (1) No detached accessory building shall be located in the front yard.

(2) A detached garage or utility building shall meet the following requirements:

(a) Side yard setback shall be a minimum of five feet from the side lot line.

(b) Rear yard setback shall be five feet from the rear lot line.

(c) An accessory building shall not exceed 20 feet in height.

(d) Accessory building shall not be larger or taller than the principal building.

(D) The architectural design and appearance of all buildings in the residential zone must have residential type siding as

determined by Zoning Administrator.

(1) No tarp like structures allowed.

(2) No corrugated metal.

(3) No cargo containers.

(E) Accessory buildings, structures and uses in a farming operation.

(1) Pole type structures and corrugated metal siding are allowed.

(2) There is no maximum size of the accessory structure.

(3) The maximum height of the structure is 35 feet.

(4) The structure must be a minimum of 100 feet from the property line.

(5) Detached accessory structures cannot be in the front yard.

(Ord. 134/94, passed 3-24-94; Am. Ord. 335, passed 4-17-03; Am. Ord. 350, passed 5-20-04; Am. Ord. 420, passed 8-18-

16; Am. Ord. 453, passed 7-18-19; Am. Ord. 480, passed 4-15-21; Am. Ord. 483, passed 6-16-21)

CITY OF MILACA

95



TARP-LIKE STRUCTURES 
CITY OF FOLEY:   
 R-1 Single and Two Family – Not permitted as a storage building or for any other use 
within any residential district except when they are used for gardening. 

 They are allowed for gardening if they are private conservatories for plants and flowers 
(NOT for sale), they do not exceed 150 square feet and no higher than 8 feet in height, located 
in rear yard. 

 R-2 Multiple Family- Not permitted as a storage building or for any other use within any 
residential district except when they are used for gardening. 

 They are allowed for gardening if they are private conservatories for plants and flowers 
(NOT for sale), they do not exceed 150 square feet and no higher than 8 feet in height, located 
in rear yard. 

 B-1 Central Business –Subdivision 3: PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES 

1. Hoop/Tubular Frame Buildings are allowed as an accessory use when used for seasonal sales 
and subject to the following: 

a. All buildings shall require a permit from the Zoning Administrator which shall be valid   
for 90 days. The permit may establish conditions relating to the hoop/tubular frame 
building, including, but not limited to, hours of operation, building size, location on the 
property, signage, and additional parking requirements. 

2. Commercial or business buildings for a use accessory to the principal use. 

3. Fences as regulated by Section 6. 

4. Off-street parking and loading areas as regulated by Section 7. 

5. Signs as regulated by Section 8. 

 B-2 Highway Business – Subdivision 3: PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES 
1. Hoop/Tubular Frame Buildings are allowed as an accessory use when used for seasonal sales 
and subject to the following: 

 
a. All buildings shall require a permit from the Zoning Administrator which shall be valid 
for 90 days. The permit may establish conditions relating to the hoop/tubular frame 
building, including, but not limited to, hours of operation, building size, location on the 
property, signage, and additional parking requirements. 
 

96



CITY OF PRINCETON: 
 

 

 

CITY OF MORA: 
Per Caleb, they do allow then only for greenhouses and they must be taken down each year.  
Cannot exceed 144 square feet. 

 

CITY OF ST. CLOUD: 
Prohibited materials for accessory buildings include:  panels made of non-architectural metal, 
fiberglass, vinyl resin, or plastic; tarps made of plastic, canvas or vinyl; unpainted corrugated 
metal panels; and, non-exterior grad plywood or similar products. 

 

CITY OF CAMBRIDGE: 
(d) Temporary accessory structures such as portable car ports, shelters, tarped 

covers, and similar structures as determined by the Zoning Administrator, shall be prohibited. 

Storage Pod Containers may be allowed for 14 days on a residential parcel for moving purposes 

and must be approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

 

 

 

 

 

97



CITY OF ELK RIVER: 

Sec. 30-124. - Exterior of premises; parking facilities. 

(a)  

Generally. No person shall occupy as an owner-occupant, or let to another for occupancy, any 
dwelling or dwelling unit for the purpose of living, sleeping, eating, or cooking therein which 
does not comply with the landscaping, screening, lighting, and other requirements of this Code 
and the requirements of this section.  

(b)  

Maintenance of accessory structures. Accessory structures, including fences, on the premises 
where the dwelling or dwelling unit is located shall be structurally sound and maintained in 
good repair. The exterior of such structures shall be covered with decay-resistant materials 
such as paint or other preservatives.  

(c)  

Outside storage. Outside storage of articles, equipment, construction materials, items not 
designed for exterior use, and miscellaneous items, including but not limited to lawn mowers 
and other lawn maintenance equipment, shall not be allowed. A weather tight, rodent proof 
storage building or shed must be constructed for storage of items not storable within the 
building.  

 

CITY OF ZIMMERMAN: 
When is a Building Permit Not Required? 

 Detached accessory buildings with less than 200 square feet of floor area 

(must be anchored and meet setback requirements) 

 

 

98


	529 REGULATING CANNABIS BUSINESSES AND CULTIVATION.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 529
	AN ORDINANCE ADDING TITLE XI (BUSINESS REGULATIONS) CHAPTER 122 ADULT-USE CANNABIS AND CANNABIS BUSINESS AND CULTIVATION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF MILACA CODE OF ORDINANCES
	§122.01 PURPOSE AND Intent.
	§122.02  DEFINITIONS.

	TARP LIKE STRUCTURES OTHER CITIES.pdf
	Sec. 30-124. - Exterior of premises; parking facilities.




